
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 

SAM NUNN 


ATLANTA l'"'EDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STRFET 

ATLANTA GEORGIA 30303·8960 

CERTlFIEOMAlL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr, "Iich""l Bolinger 
Starehem, LLC 
10150 Greenville Highway 
Wellford, South Carolina 29385 

SUBJECT: 	 Starchem, LLC 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Dockel No, CERCLA-04-201l·2000(b) 

Dear Mr, Bolinger: 

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) that resolves the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation. and Liability 
Aet (CERCLA) matter (Docket No, CERCLA-04-2011-2000(b)) involving Starchem, LLC. 
The CAfO was med with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and 
became effective on the date of the filing. 

Also enclosed, pleaqe find a copy of the "Notice ofSecurities: and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings.'~ This document puts you on 
notice of your potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any 
environmental enforcement actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). If 
you have any questions with regards to the SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you 
may refer to the contact phone number at the bottom of the SEC Notice. 

If you have any questions, please call Ms. Deanne Grant at (404) 562-929 L 

?1N./,
/~~on B. Falconer, ChI
,peRA Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 

lr7Jrll«\ Address (URL) • ht!p:tiwNw_epil.gov 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONME1\i'l'AL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


= 

IN THE MAHER OF ) 
) 

Starchem.LLC ) 

) 
Docket Number: CERCLA-04-2011-2000(b)'

f ' -
1,0 

Respondent, ) 

CONSJ,NT AGREEMENT AND f'lNAL ORDER 

L N£lture of the Action 

L Thi~ is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Set,1Jon 109 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation. and Liability Act (CERCLA). a.~ amended. 42 U .s.C, 
§ 9609 arul pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practicc Goveming Adminislrative Assessment 
of Civil Penalties, and the RevocationlTcrmination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated 
Rules), codified at 40 C.F.R Part 22. Complainant is tlte Director of the Air. Pesticides and 
Toxics: Management Division. Region 4. United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 
Respondent is Starchcm, LLC 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b) and deSIre to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without. it formal hearing. Therefore. without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument, Or the adjudication of nuy issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.ER. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(0), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) win simultaneously commence and conclude this marter. 

II. Preliminary Statements 

3. The authority to take action uooerSection 109 ofCERCLA, 42 V,S.C § 9609 is 
vested in the Administrator of EPA. TIle Admlnistrator of EPA ha:i delegated this authority 
under CERCLA to the Regioml AdmilriSlmlors by EPA Delegation 14-31 dated May 11, 1994. 
The Regiottal Administrator, Region 4, ha.~ redelegated to the Director. Air, Pesticides and 
Toxics Management Division, the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 
dated March 8, 1999. and updated August 6. 2004. Pursuant to lhese delegations, the Director of 
the Air. Pesticides and Toxlos Management Division has the authority to commence an 
enforcement action as the Complainant in this matter. 

4. Respondent. Slarchem, LLC does bu. ..iness in the State of South Carolina 

s. Responrlent is a "personH as defined in Section 101(21) of CERCLA. 42 U.S.CO § 
9601(21). 



6. Respondent has a "facility" as that term is defined by Section 101(9) ofCERCLA. 
42 U,S.C § 9601(9), 

7. Respondent's facility is tocatetl at 10150 Greenville Highway. Wellford, South 
Carolina 293&5. 

8. Respondent is an "owner or operator" of the fdcility as that term is defined by 
Section 101 (20XA) nfCERCI.A, 42 U,S,C § 9601(20)(A), 

III. EPA's ~llegation ofViolatiQP 

9. Section l02(a) of CERCLA, 42 U,s'c' § ')602(a), required the Administrator of 
EPA to publish a list ofsub~1ances designated as hazardous substances which, when released 
into the environment, may present :.ub:.tantlai danger to public heahh or welfare 01' the 
environment and to l)romulgatc regulations estab1ishing the quantity ofany hazardous substance 
the reiea<;e ofwhicn was required to be reported under Section lOJ(a) ofCERCLA. 42 V.S.C. 
§ 9603(a). EPA has published and amended l:iuch a list, including the corresponding reportahle 
quantities (RQ) for tnme substances. This list initially published on April 4. 1985 (50 Fed. Reg. 
13474) and is periodically amendments, is codified at 40 c'F,R. Part 302, 

10. Section lO3(a) oCCERCLA, 42 U,S.c. § %03(a), and the regulations found at 
40 C.F.R. § 302.6. require a person in cbarge of a facility or vessel, a') soon as he nr she ha!:i 
knowledge of a release ofa hazardous substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal 
to, or greater than the RQ. to immediately notify the National Response Center (NRC). 

11. Respondent was in charge of the facility during the relevant period described 
below. 

12. Trimethylamine is a "hazardous substance" as that term is defined by Section 
101(14) ofCERCLA, 42 U.s,C, § 9601 (14), Witll an RQ orIOO pounds, as specified in 40 C.r.R. 
§ 302,4, 

13. EPA alleges that on May 21. 2010, Respondent had a release ltftrimethylamine 
ahove the RQ at the facilit}, 

14. EPA allege') that Rc<.;pom.lent violated the notification requirements ofSectiun 
lO3(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U,S.CO § 9603(a), by failing (0 immediatelY notifY the NRC as soon as 
Respondent had knowledge of the release of trimethylamine in an amount equal to or greater 
than its RQ at Respondent's faci!ity and is therefore subject to the- assessment ofpenalties under 
Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U,S,c. § <)60'), 

15, Pursuam to Section 109 ofCERe!.A, 42 U,S,c. § %09, and 40 C,F.R. Part 19, 
EPA may assess a penalty not to exceed $37.500 for each violation ofSection 103(a) of 
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CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(.). thll1 occurred after January 12, 2009. Each day a violation of 
Section 103 continuC8 constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section l09 of 
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, may be assessed by an Administrative Order. 

rv, Consent Agreement 

16. For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. 

17, Respondent waives any right to c.untel)t the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed final order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

18. Respondent consents to dIe asseSSllli.."llt of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as 
set forth in tltis CAPO. 

19. Respondent certifies thll1 as of the date of its execotion of this CAPO, it is in 
compliance with aU relevant requirements of CERCLA. 

20. Compliance with the CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United States 
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement. action against Rei4pondent. for violation of any fe<leral or state statute, regulation or 
pen::nit.. to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangerment, or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

21. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAPO. The pnrties agree that the seificrnent of tltis matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAPO is coI15istent with the "I'Plicable requirements of CERCLA. 

v. Fina! Order 

22. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of FIVE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED 
DOlLARS ($5,800) for the CERCLA violation which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the 
effective dat.e of this CAFO. 

23. Respondent shall pay the CERCLA civil penalty by forwarding a cashier', or 
certilled check. payable to "EPA Ha7,ardous Substance Superfund" 10 one of the follOWing 
addresses; 

BY MAIL BY OVERNIGHT 
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 
Superfund Payments Attention: Natalie Pearson (314) 418-4087 
CincitUlati Finance. Center 1005 Convenlion Plaza 
P.O. Box 979076 Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 

St. Louis, Missouri 63197·9000 SI. Louis, Missouri 63101 
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The check shall reference on it, face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

24. At the lime of pa)'llleJ11., Respondent sball send a separate <"<lpy of the check, and a 
written statement that payment has- been made in accordance with this CAFO. to the following 
persons at the follQwing addrcs~: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA. Regiou4 
61 Fornyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanlll, GA 30303 

Deanne D. Grant 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Saundi Wilf-iun 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U .8. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta. GA 30303 

25. For the purposes of state and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agree, not to attemp~ to clllim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments ,hllll 
constitute a violation of this CAFO 

26. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
date of this CAFO if the penalty is not pam by the date required, Interest will be ",,,;,,..ed at the 
r.te e,tablished by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717, Acbarge will be 
assessed to cover the coots of deht collection, including processing and handling costs and 
attorney fees. In addition, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that 
remain·, delinquent more than ninety (90) da~ after payment is due. 

27. Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this 
matter. 

28. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors, and assigns. 

29, The following individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in tltis 
proceeding: 
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Caron B. Falconer 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air Pesticides & Toxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.w. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-8451 

30. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAPO certifies that he or 
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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VI. Effective Date 

31. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the dale on which the CAFO is filed with 
thc Rcgional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Starch C 

By: -/f/f"'f--,------,-_,---=---,-,___ (Signature) Date: 11/2/Id 


Na e: /1,J.,~) 2.!'lr-"" (Typed or Printed) 


Title: O:ce)""£ /vb..J;Juo~ (Typed or Printed) 


u.s. E R otection Agyncy 

By: ~M!::!:~:::::~~{Jt,,~'\"W~____ Date: 
Beverly H. Banister, D ector 
Air, Pesticides & Toxies 

Management Division 
Region 4 

) 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this --,,~=J-C"~_-_,day of .'ttnr ,20lU. 

Susan B. Schuh 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

r hereby cerlify that I have- this day ;served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Con~enl Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of Starchem. LLC, Docket No. 

CERCLA·04·2011·2000(bl. on the partie, listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's hltcmal mail) 
U.S. EPA. Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA', internal mail) 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accuuntability 
61 For'yth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Mr. Michael Bolinger (Certified Mail· Return Receipt Requested) 
Starchem, LLC 
10150 Gl'OCli.viHe Highway 
Wellford, SC 29385 

Date: /1- Q;) -/() 

Patricia A. BuHoc, egional Hearing CJerk 
Umted States EU.viroruncntal 
Prot«"tion Agency. Region 4 
Atlanta Pederal Center 
61 Fon;yrh Street. S.W. 
Atlanr", GA 30303 
(404) 562·9511 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that f have this day served a tnle find correct copy of the foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, in the Matter of Catgon Carbon Corporation. 

EPCRA-04-2011-2019(h), on the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Djvision 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA', internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountahility 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Jean Mosites (Certified Mail, Return Receipt 
Babst, Calland, Clements, Requested) 
and Zomnir. P.C. 
Two Gateway Center 
Piusburgh, Permsylvania 15222 

Date Il-~d-!6 
Patricia A, Bullock, Regional Hearing Clerk 
United States Enviromncntal 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlantu Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562·9511 
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EPA ACCOIJNTS RECEIVABU! CONTROL NUMBER FORM 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ORIGINATING QfFlCE, 
(Attach a C097 of the final otdet an4 transmittal letter to Defencbm~ 

~'"I ._.... Saundi Wilson === 	 II Ii "/!~IIIUl orm1ratln "/I~ _________ ________" _",=-!.!'~:"" 
INIlmI!) 	 (DIM) 

m~____~a~e'~i~o~n~4~.~o~R~c~._o~EA=-~~=_____________________~(4041562'~S04 
(tJm<e) , 	 (T,,-Niiiiiliil'l 

Non-SFJ\ldkW 0rderfC0ftStdI J)em!c \iY:J 
USAO L'OLLECl'SD 

CD 
D 
D 

The C...________.,-C.!t'c.:',;.~::..<-;;;;):...'-,v,-Ll.I_'!-G=',;.I_-_d-D"-,,l::.C::;.:.;(h=-)i--______________ 
The __S.___ N....... _____________________________________ 


ThrIJMS A___~_'" 0...,_______ 

U yfIU b.avt! aDJ qotSt.Ions. plaiSted:_ _ 01 tbt: ~M~ Stdiaa at: -: 

A" 	 Jli'DIClAL OJWEM: Copio ef i:JIiIf r-.all lID Uiatbed t:JiIIr1e1 the rroM "..01. F'f!!!t\L JlJJltClAL. oltHa 
should be -.sed ~ 

1. 	 ~OfI'ke(EADt--.Eaftr...-...l ~ktitA 	 0........ Procr-OfDa 

[Ie,..'. Juukc RN itot ., 

P,O,a.7flt,....~Statiaa 


W~n.c.ztNt 


B. 	 Al\MINISTMDVE ORD«t$: Cople ullhil fIInn 'll'tth aD atbdIH C1'IPJ 01. rro.u pip! III Uie A~... Onh:r sbould be 1M 

I. 


